Berkeley Unified School District
2020 Bonar Street, The Tech Lab, Room 126
Berkeley, CA 94702

Personnel Commission

Heidi Goldstein, Chairperson Dr. Reynaldo Ortiz, Vice-Chairperson Tim Carter, Commissioner

10.

11.

12.

13.

Patricia Duwel, Secretary

Meeting Agenda
June 7", 2018 — 4:30 pm

Call to Order Chairperson Goldstein
Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum Secretary Duwel
Public Comments (15-minute limit) Public

This is an opportunity for the public to comment on Personnel Commission business not on the agenda. The time limit is five minutes per individual and
a total of fifteen minutes per subject. No action can be taken by the Commission.

Approval & Adoption of Agenda Chairperson Goldstein

Approval of Meeting Minutes Chairperson Goldstein
Approve the Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes for the following:
a) May 3, 2018, Regular Meeting Minutes, p. 2-7

Consent Iltems Chairperson Goldstein
It is recommended that the Personnel Commission consider approving a number of agenda items as a Consent list. Consent items are routine in nature,
and can be enacted in one motion without further discussion. This procedure conserves meeting time for a full discussion of significant issues.

Ratification of Eligibility Lists

a) Educational Occupational Therapist, p. 8
b) Nutrition Services Assistant, p.9

Conference Items Chairperson Goldstein
These items are presented for discussion and action and may be carried over from a previous meeting.
a) Personnel Commission Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 - Attachment

Closed Session (2 matters) Chairperson Goldstein

a) Employee Discipline and Legal Matters - Government Code § 54954.5
(2017-D-01) (2017-D-02)(2018-D-01)

b) Performance Evaluation of the Director, Classified Personnel

Report from Closed Session Chairperson Goldstein
Reports

a) Union Union Representatives

b) District Reports District Representatives
c) Commissioners Reports Commissioners

d) Personnel Director Secretary Duwel

i New Hires and Examinations administered in the month of May, p. 10

Public Comments (15-minute limit) Public
This is an opportunity for the public to comment on Personnel Commission business not on the agenda. The time limit is five minutes per
individual and a total of fifteen minutes per subject. No action can be taken by the Commission.

Next Meeting Chairperson Goldstein
Follow up items for next Personnel Commission Meeting.

Adjournment Chairperson Goldstein

Agendas and minutes of Personnel Commission meeting are available at the District’s website, www.berkeleyschools.net. Also, in accordance with the Brown Act and
Government Code § 54957.5 (b)(1), writings that are related to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting, that are public records not otherwise exempt from
disclosure and that are distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at the time the writings are distributed to at least
the majority of Commissioners. The public may request copies of the records at the District’'s Human Resources office at 2020 Bonar Street, Berkeley, CA 94702.



http://www.berkeleyschools.net/

10

30

5.

UNOFFICIAL VERSION

Berkeley Unified School District
2020 Bonar Street, The Tech Lab, Room 126
Berkeley, CA 94702

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
May 3, 2018 - 4:30 pm

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 4:34 pm.

Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
Chairperson Goldstein and Vice-Chairperson Ortiz were present, and a quorum was established.

Public Comments

Chairperson Goldstein advised the public that speaker cards were available for those who wanted to address the
Commission during the public FY19 budget hearing.

Peggy Scott, BUSD Sexual Harassment Advisory Committee member, commented that she organized the first PTSA
forum on harassment and bullying, and was in favor of professional development for classified staff. She said she
would like harassment, bullying, and diversity training offered to staff because they are the front line support for
many of the students and are influential to them, and it would be helpful if staff were trained | techniques to help
students to stop negative behavior. She also said diversity training would be beneficial.

Margaret Roos-Collins, (former) head of the Safety Committee at BHS, commented that she was in favor of a
budget item used to train classified staff. She said that disaster preparedness training would be helpful. She
asserted that training would help create a culture of greater accountability and that many assume the staff at
BUSD are receiving this training.

Leslie Lippard, a BUSD parent, said that this year her daughter was constantly harassed and bullied because of her
perceived gender identity. She said that training is needed for staff because they deal with so many different
children with different needs.

Rebecca Levenson, a parent of four students or BUSD alumni, and a member of the Sexual Harassment Advisory
Committee, commented that she is well aware of the many climate problems in the District and the difficulty in
retaining classified staff. She said that if the District expects to create a climate change, then it can’t leave staff
without a skill set to manage some of the painful things that they see. She added that if the District is interested
in restorative justice and stopping harassment, it can’t leave classified staff behind without the training they need.

Approval & Adoption of Agenda
Vice-Chairperson Ortiz made a motion to approve the agenda; Chairperson Goldstein seconded the motion,

Approved, 2-0

Approval of Meeting Minutes
April 10, 2018, Regular Meeting Minutes
Vice-Chairperson Ortiz made a motion to approve the minutes; Chairperson Goldstein seconded the motion,
Approved 2-0
2



Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes

Fli
Aot 10, 2008 - 430 o UNOFFICIAL VERSION
Page | 2

6. Consent ltems

Ratification of Eligibility Lists

a) Assistant Superintendent of Business Services

b) Custodian Il

c) Payroll Specialist

d) Nutrition Services Assistant
Chairperson Goldstein pointed out the short intervals between the exams.
Chairperson Goldstein made a motion to approve the lists; Vice-Chairperson Ortiz seconded the motion,
Approved, 2-0

7. Conference Items
a) Agenda ltem Request- Advanced Step Request, K. O’ Guinn

Secretary Duwel reported the District had selected Mr. 0’Guinn, who will remain at his current job until the
end of the school year, for the African American Success Project Manager role. She advised that he accepted
the job offer and has requested advanced step placement. Secretary Duwel recommended a fourth step
placement based on Mr. O’Guinn’s depth of experience in working with disenfranchised youth and other
youth that need support.
Paula Phillips, BCCE President, commented that the Union opposes this advanced step placement because
she believes the position was not a difficult recruitment. She noted that the District approved $125,000
LCAP dollars total compensation for this position, but if the salary is increased to $105,000 with added
statutory benefits, the District may need to come up with additional funds; meanwhile, her union members
are being laid off and not given raises.
Chairperson Goldstein remarked that Patricia Saddler, Director of Special Projects, had proposed at a recent
school board meeting that BUSD hire a second African American Success Project Manager using unspent
funds allocated for this position in the current fiscal year, and asked if this was going to be the case. Pauline
Follansbee, Interim Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, agreed that while this was brought up at
the board meeting, it was unclear whether Ms. Saddler was requesting an additional recruitment.
Chairperson Goldstein asked if there would be an adverse fiscal impact in granting the advanced step
placement. Secretary Duwel responded that she couldn’t speak to the budget impact, but noted that
Associate Superintendent Scuderi supported the proposed step placement. Chairperson Goldstein
observed that a candidate’s level of experience and depth in a role are criteria considered in granting a step
placement.
Vice-Chairperson Ortiz made a motion to accept the advanced step placement request; Chairperson
Goldstein seconded the motion,
Approved, 2-0

8. Public Hearing: Education Code § 45253 - Personnel Commission Budget, 2018- 2019
Chairperson Goldstein called the public hearing to order at 5:00 pm. Chairperson Goldstein noted that the first
reading of the proposed draft budget [Commission Meeting on April 10, 2018] did not include funding for staff
training and that she requested the addition of $25,000 to the budget after it was clear that the District FY'19 semi-
final budget did not allocate resources for Classified Staff Professional Development. She said that another vehicle
was needed to provide training for classified staff, and that the proposed funding level was intended to establish
3



Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
Aprh 10, 2015430 p UNOFFICIAL VERSION
Page | 3

pilot programs to address pain points for high turnover positions such as the Para-educator job classes. Chairperson
Goldstein cited data from the personnel reports that have been approved at the school board meetings since the
start of the academic year. She reported that just over 47% of all staffing changes for that period involved these
particular job classes. She observed that such repeated transactions are costly and that the public perception of
Para-educator performance is not good. Chairperson Goldstein explained that the proposed allocation is meant to
bring stakeholders together to develop training or programs to reduce turnover, bolster retention and improve
performance in key areas. She also noted that other merit districts include a training allocation in the Personnel
Commission budget and that the total budget for the BUSD Personnel Commission, as a percentage of overall
operating costs, is lower than the average for merit districts in California, according to research conducted by the
California School Personnel Commission Association (CSPCA). Vice-Chairperson Ortiz asked Secretary Duwel if the
amount of money for the training allocation is an appropriate amount to request. Secretary Duwel responded that
it depends on the training.
Interim Assistant Superintendent Follansbee voiced agreement with the need for additional classified staff training,
and observed that for FY’19 the District had to make $1.8 million in program or staffing cuts from the general fund.
She added that the Personnel Commission budget is sourced from the general fund, and the District was juggling
competing funding demands including: salary increases, PERS and STRS contributions, and management of Special
Education costs. Ms. Follansbee reported that all departments had been instructed to cut 6% from their FY’'19
budgets. She noted that the Professional Development (PD) budget is sourced from restricted funds and that PD
funding for FY’19 was considered by the school board in January. However, she added that she would explore the
possibility of including training resources in a future budget year.
Donna Storey, Secretary of the Academic Choice Advisory Council, commented that she was in favor of the proposed
allocation for training funds. She observed that sometimes funds are not spent well, and that the existing sexual
harassment training hasn’t changed behavior and should be upgraded and improved. Ms. Storey commented that
the community must be responsible stewards of resources and believes this will be a modest investment and will
pay off year after year.
President Phillips commented that she was thankful to those who came out to speak in support of classified training.
She said that during her tenure as the BCCE President, she has noticed that professional development falls by the
wayside when there is a change in the Classified Director or Certificated PD Coordinator positions. She observed
that mandated reporter training is offered because the state requires it, and that the Union supports more targeted
training, in addition to the two existing scheduled professional development days, to help staff better perform their
jobs. She also noted that the Union supports specialized training targeted to the Instructional Assistant, SPED, and
the Instructional Tech- Before and After School roles. President Phillips observed that for enrichment activities the
District relies on Contractors paid through PTA donations, but that the Instructional Tech positions should receive
training to facilitate delivery of such programs. She also noted that the district lagged in compliance to recently
passed legislation requiring professional development for classified staff.
Rebecca Levenson, BUSD parent and policy consultant to Futures Without Violence said that funding for classified
staff training, including quality assessment, presented an opportunity to shift away from compliance to meaningful
support. She suggested pilot training for classified staff that invested in them in the same way that some
professional development programs have invested in teachers. She commented that the ongoing implementation
of Green Dot [up stander support] training should be offered to classified staff in addition to teachers and
administrators. Ms. Levenson advocated for measuring the impact of professional development investments to

4



Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
Ao 10, 2018 430 o UNOFFICIAL VERSION
Page | 4

understand what works. She said that a trauma-informed framework would be an incredibly beneficial overlay to
the sexual harassment training currently offered, and that such training should include all staff that work with
students.
Peggy Scott, BUSD Sexual Harassment Advisory Committee member clarified that currently BUSD provides sexual
harassment training only to supervisors. She urged the District to consider providing such training, and other
professional development opportunities, to any staff who supervise students.
Leslie Lippard, BUSD parent, commented that she works with a company that had to make significant cuts, and
encouraged the District to make the system sustainable for the people that are working for our children.
Ms. Follansbee sought clarification as to how the requested training funds would be utilized and emphasized the
need to maximize the current training resources. She expressed concern over support for an augmented training
budget at the same time that School Safety Officer layoffs are being considered.
Mara Kolesas, President of Berkeley PTA Council, commented that she supports the budget item for training
classified personnel who support students and observed that such funding would elevate the quality of the training
given to staff, and that through such investment, the employee will acquire skills to become better at their job.
Chairperson Goldstein explained that she allowed Ms. Kolesas to speak at the end of the hearing without a speaker
card because it wasn't clear that speaker cards would be used during the hearing because and everyone present
had an opportunity to speak.
The public hearing was closed at 5:43 pm.
Vice-Chairperson Ortiz asked if the District would also need to approve the Personnel Commission budget, Secretary
Duwel responded that if the District contests the budget, the county will hold a hearing to determine its disposition.
Secretary Duwel asserted that the funds for training can only be used to train commission staff, not all classified
staff, and that it would be problematic if the funds were used to train others.
Chairperson Goldstein advised that she had consulted with George Cole, Executive Director of CSPCA, on this matter
and learned that in some merit districts the Commission holds a more robust training portfolio and provides training
to classified staff; and, while the practice is not common, it is not without precedent. Chairperson Goldstein asked
if the BUSD Commission had previously held a training portfolio. President Phillips replied it happened once before.
Vice-Chairperson Ortiz noted that the Commission has been working to separate District and Commission
operations and this step would be muddying the waters. Chairperson Goldstein said that with the recent changein
Commission staffing much of the “muddiness” in the distribution of HR and Commission tasks has been resolved.
She added that the need for targeted training is urgent. In response to Vice-Chairperson Ortiz’s comment that the
proposal lacked substance, Chairperson Goldstein replied that the level of specificity matched to the recently
approved general fund budget item for $100,000 in student training resources.
Vice-Chairperson Ortiz said that the Commission could be delving into an area outside of its purview, and agreed
with Director Duwel’s recommendation to develop a plan to include training resources in the following year’s
budget proposal. He noted that the Commission should be good stewards and consider that the District is grappling
with budget shortfalls. He suggested sending a letter to the District to request that funds be reserved on behalf of
the Personnel Commission and that they look at the current budget to see if training funds can be incorporated into
next year’s budget. Chairperson Goldstein expressed concern that such an approach would introduce excessive
delay. Vice-Chairperson Ortiz asked Secretary Duwel for her thoughts on possible communications about this with
the District. Secretary Duwel observed that the dialogue had been opened, but budget changes at this point could
cause contention between the District and the Commission. Chairperson Goldstein noted that because the
commissioners did not agree on this matter, it should be brought to the next meeting.

5



10.

11.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
A 10, 2018 4530 UNOFFICIAL VERSION
Page | S

Chairperson Goldstein made a motion to move this item to a special meeting; Vice-Chairperson Ortiz seconded the
motion,
Approved, 2-0

Closed Session (2 matters)
a) Employee Discipline and Legal Matters - Government Code § 54954.5
(2017-D-01) (2017-D-02)
The Personnel Commission went into closed session at 6:03 pm.

Report from Closed Session

The Personnel Commission came out of closed session at 6:20 pm. Chairperson Goldstein reported that Secretary
Duwel will receive an eight-month performance evaluation during the June meeting Closed Session, and will provide
alternate performance evaluation formats to the Commissioners beforehand. She also reported that the
Commission discussed two pending appeals and gave direction to Secretary Duwel.

Reports
a) Union
President Phillips commented that the Union is bartering for a successor agreement because the contract
ends on June 30%. She identified outstanding issues including lack of agreement regarding work calendars,
and the authorization of a 1% bonus. She expressed concern that the District is becoming increasingly top
heavy by allowing Supervisors and managers to start at advanced steps, but that is not the case for the
BCCE union members. She noted that the district is holding but not utilizing funds that should be used for
classified staff raises. President Phillips commented that there are two layoff resolutions, however, she
believes the Classified Director and the District are misapplying the contract rules in these cases.

b) District Reports
Brent Daniels, HR Director, commented that the District continues to meet with the Union to discuss each
party’s contract concerns and that the parties will continue to work together to come to solutions. He
added that there were three management level positions that were being laid off. He identified a
common theme of working together in the interest of the students.

¢) Commissioners Reports
Chairperson Goldstein thanked everyone for the dialogue on the proposed addition of training resources

to the budget. She also thanked Personnel Commission staff for planning the upcoming Classified
Recognition event. She advised that she would be holding office hours on Wednesday, May 16" at Highwire

Café from 8am-9am.
d) Personnel Director

i. New Hires and Examinations administered in the month of April.
Secretary Duwel reviewed testing activity that occurred in the month of April.

12. Public Comments

None.



13.

14.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
April 10, 2018 — 4:30 pm
Page | 6

Next Meeting

UNOFFICIAL VERSION

A special meeting was tentatively scheduled for May, 16" at 4:30 pm. The next regular meeting to be held on June

7" at 4:30 pm.

Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 6:32 pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

V) ——<
Patricia Duwel
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Approved,

Heidi Goldstein
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

Q///.Loty

Date /

Date



Berkeley Unified School District

Merit System
Eligibility List for : Educational Occupational Therapist
(Open)
Written Examination: May 3, 2018
Oral Examination: May 3, 2018

List Established by Personnel Commission: June 7, 2018 to expire June 6, 2019

Open
1 Tanya Orgill

2 Jessie Drake

p/) —= glifracy

Patricia Duwel Datd /
Secretary, Personnel Commission
Heidi Goldstein Date

Chairperson, Personnel Commission



Berkeley Unified School District

Merit System
Eligibility List for : Nutrition Services Assistant
(Open)
Written Examination: May 17, 2018
Oral Examination: June 3, 2018

List Established by Personnel Commission: June 7, 2018 to expire June 6, 2019

Open
1 Scott Jackson**

2 Arti Darshini*
3 Edelmira Zamora
4 Misty Carlson™**

* Eligibility to expire February 5, 2019
** Eligibility to expire May 2, 2019

g/ﬂ-ﬁ\h\_,q L/-,;/.zor?

Patricia Duwel Datéd
Secretary, Personnel Commission
Heidi Goldstein

Date

Chairperson, Personnel Commission



Examinations Administered in the Month of May:

Classification Written Oral Performance
Educational Occupational Therapist 2 2

Executive Director-Facilities, Operations and Maintenance 6 6

Nutrition Services Assistant 2

Administrative Assistant | 15

Human Resources Technician
Employee Benefits Specialist
Instructional Assistant

OO

New Hires/New Assignments/Promotions Processed in the Month of May:

Name- Employment Type- Classification- Location/Dept.
Fernando Robles New Hire General Services Manager Berkeley High

10



ATTACHMENT A

PERSONNEL COMMISSION
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
June 7, 2018

AGENDA ITEM 7A
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF THE 2018/2019
PERSONNEL COMMISSION BUDGET (DRAFT)

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Annually, in accordance with Education Code §45253, the Commission is required to prepare
their annual budget for a public hearing and submit their annual budget to the County
Superintendent of Schools. This second reading includes an additional $25,000 line item for
Train the Trainer items that would be designated for the Director of Classified Personnel to
become an in-house trainer for the purpose of providing training to district staff in mutually
agreed upon trainings. This item was added at the request of the Commission Chair.

DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION

Review the budget as a presented. The requisite budget hearing was held at the regularly
scheduled meeting of the Personnel Commission on May 3, 2018. Approve the budget as
presented at the meeting of the Personnel Commission on Tuesday, April 10", 2018 and submit
to the Superintendent for County Office of Education. The Director does not recommend the
additional $25,000 line item for Train the Trainer training at this time. This proposal would be
better suited for the 19-20 Personnel Commission Budget with more time devoted for research
and vetting of training programs along with more defined discussion with the District
Administration on implementation going forward.



ATTACHMENT A

DEPARTMENT: Personnel Commission
DATE: July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019

BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
PERSONNEL COMMISSION DRAFT BUDGET: FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019

ITEMS REQUESTED

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

CODE 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019
Staffing FTE:
1.0 FTE Director, Including Statutory Benefits 2302/7403 $185,387.23| $185,387.23| $202,278.43
1.0 FTE Classified Personnel Supervisor, Including Statutory Benefits | 2302/7403 $87,777.76 $95,454.59| $110,964.56
1.0 FTE Human Resources Technician, Including Statutory Benefits 2402/7403 $65,093.83 $73,765.09 $89,630.86
Subs/Proctors, Including Statutory Benefits (Raters/Panelists) 2416/7403 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $8,250.00
Hourly Overtime 2412/7403 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $750.00
Total Salary Requests $347,258.82| $363,606.91| $411,873.85
Other Items:
Books and Other Ref. Material 4200/7403 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
Other Supplies 4350/7403 $12,410.00 $9,000.00]  $11,000.00
Equipment 4400/7403 $4,910.00 $4,910.00 $4,910.00
Travel and Conference 5200/7403 $7,000.00 $7,000.00| $32,500.00
Dues and Memberships 5300/7403 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Central Printing - Xerox 5712/7403 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
Copier Lease - Intrafund 5713/7403 $4,320.00 $4,320.00 $4,320.00
Postage/Federal Express/Certified Mail 5910/7403 $1,300.00 $1,300.00 $800.00
Total Other Items $35,940.00 $32,530.00 $59,530.00
Prof/Consulting Svcs & Operating Expenses:
Legal Counsel 5829/7403 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Prof/Consulting Sves 5800/7403 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $9,750.00
Commissioner Fees 5800/7403 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $2,000.00
Recruiting/ Advertising 5800/7403 $9,750.00 $9,750.00 $2,000.00
Pre-employment Examinations 5800/7403 $9,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Applications/ Announcements/Copying 5800/ 7403 $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $3,200.00
Testing 5800/7403 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $750.00
Drug Testing (Per State Requirement and Union Contract Provisions) | 5800/7403 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Total Prof/Consulting Svcs & Operating Expenses $44,700.00 $45,700.00 $39,700.00
GRAND TOTAL $427,898.82 $441,836.91| $511,103.85




ATTACHMENT A

810Z-LT10C 01 ¥10¢Z-€10¢C Ad
LAd0ddYd L49dNd JALLVIVdINOD

NOISSININOD TANNOSYdAd



14 Berkeley USD COMPARATIVE BUDGET REPORT JS277 BDR110 H.00.43 03/21/18 PAGE 1
Personnel Commission

FUND :01 GENERAL FUND RESOURCE: 0000 UNRESTRICTED GEN. EDUC. & OTHR
CALC: 6-5

2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2017-2018 2017-2018
FY2013-14 FY2014-15 FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2017-18 FY2017-18 DIFF

Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Adopted Working R

1903 OTH CERT SUBS SICK LEAVE 139 3 [ [o] 0o [+] 0

TOTAL: 1xXxx 139 3 0 0 0 0 0
2302 CLASS SUPER & ADMIN MONTH SAL 168,454 154,232 188,731 132,310 175,810 177,552 1,742
2316 CLASS. SUPV - LIMITED TERM 0 164 0 60,276 0 0 0
2350 CASH IN LIEU OF BENEFITS 5,179 1,295 0 0 0 0 0
2402 CLERICAL TECH & OFC STAFF SAL 45,912 35,532 30,465 50,385 50,196 50,698 502
2412 CLERICAL TECH & OFC OVERTIME 220 423 207 558 2,733 2,733 0
2416 CLERICAL LIMITED TERM 1,698 15,060 9,456 12,943 10,933 10,933 (o}

TOTAL: 2XXX 221,463 206,705 228,859 256,470 239,672 241,916 2,244
3101 STATE TEACHERS'RET.SYS, CERT 11 0 0 0 0 0 0
3102 STATE TEACHERS'RET.SYS, CLASS 16 85 108 S 0 29 29
3202 PUBLIC EMPL. RET. SYS, CLASSIF 24,642 22,639 26,150 22,324 35,101 35,860 759
3301 MEDICARE - CERTIFICATED 2 ] 0 0 0 0 0
3302 MEDICARE - CLASSIFIED 3,094 2,868 3,161 3,659 3,437 3,586 149
3312 FICA - CLASSIFIED 13,216 12,188 13,448 15,422 14,859 15,318 459
3402 HEALTH & WELFARE BEN. CLASSIF. 21,416 22,707 27,245 23,374 27,870 29,853 1,983
3501 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS. CERTIF 0 0 [ [ 0 0 0
3502 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS. CLASSI 561 120 133 149 139 149 10
3601 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INS.CERT 3 ] [ o] 0 0 0
3602 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INS.CLSS 4,543 4,238 4,692 5,258 4,857 5,197 340
3702 RETIREE BENEFITS, CLASSIF. POS 6,264 4,836 5,697 4,287 5,199 3,327 1,872~

TOTAL: 3xXxXx 73,769 69,680 80,630 74,478 91,462 93,319 1,857
4200 BOOKS & OTHER REF. MATERIALS 267 14 118 190 500 500 0
4350 OTHER SUPPLIES 6,713 7,998 7,246 6,267 9,000 7,414 1,586~
4400 EQUIPMENT $500 TGO $5,000 13,048 0 4,105 2,914 4,910 3,000 1,910-

TOTAL: 4xxx 20,027 8,012 11,469 9,371 14,410 10,914 3,496~
5200 TRAVEL AND CONFERENCES 2,489 3,855 6,305 5,439 7,000 7,000 0
5300 DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS 1,945 1,552 2,721 5,600 3,000 2,095 905-
5712 CENTRAL PRINTING - XEROX 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 0
5713 COPIER LEASE - INTRAFUND 4,320 0 4,320 4,320 4,320 4,320 0
5800 PROF/CONSULTING SVCS & OPR EXP 7,629 21,517 22,639 22,371 35,700 30,575 5,125-
5829 LEGAL FEES 4,508 3,698 9,718 11,846 [ o} (]
5910 POSTAGE/MAILINGS 1,309 157 85 69 1,300 1,300 0

TOTAL: 5xxx 24,700 33,279 48,288 52,145 53,820 47,790 6,030-
+TOTAL:1000-7999 340,099 317,680 369,246 392,464 399,364 393,939 5,425~
**TOTAL:1000-5999 340,099 317,680 369,246 392,464 399,364 393,939 5,425-
**TOTAL:1000-6999 ) 340,099 317,680 369,246 392,464 399,364 393,939 5,425-
*+TOTAL:1000-7999 340,099 317,680 369,246 392,464 399,364 393,939 5,425-

¥ ANJWHOVLLY





